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We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s. 

Petronet MHB limited ("the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 

March 31, 2025, the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity, 

and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to t he standalone 

financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act , 2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and its 
profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the St andards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of 
most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current 
period. These matters were addressed in t he context of our audit of the standalone 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
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Information Other than the standa one Financial Statements and Auditor's Report 
Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report but 

does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report 

thereon. Such other information is expected to be made available to us after the 

date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other 

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our 

responsibility is to read the other information when it becomes available and, in 

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged 

with governance and take appropriate action accordingly. 

Responsibility of Management for the standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of 
these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
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accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management' s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone 
financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
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• date of our auditor' s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, t he planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in 
uity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
th the books of account. 
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind 
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e. As per notification number G.S.R. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs, section 164(2) of the Act regarding the disqualifications of 
Directors is not applicable to the Compahy, since it is a Government Company; 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in "Annexure B". 

g. As per notification number G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs, section 197 of the Act regarding remuneration to director is 
not applicable to the Company, since it is a Government Company; 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation's on its financial 
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note No.30 of the 
standalone financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there are material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. 

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign 
entity ("Intermediary"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, no funds have been received by the company from any 
person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Party"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall, whetherJ directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

Page 5 of 15 



# 156, 3"' Floor, Puttanna Chetty Road, 
5th Main Road,Chamarajpet, 
Bengaluru - 560 018. 

,a- 080-26602139, 22427014 
181 shraddha@arvco.in 
e http://arvco.in 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice 
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause 
(i) and (ii) of Rule ll(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any 
material mis-statement. 

v. The dividend paid during the year by the company is in compliance 
with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

vi. Pursuant to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and clause (g) 
of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the company 
is using accounting software ( SAP S/4 HANA) for maintaining its books of 
accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail facility and the same 
has been operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the 
software and the audit trail feature has not been tampered with and the 
audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention. 

3. As required by section 143 (5) of the Act, we give in "Annexure C", a statement on 
the matters specified by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the 
company. 

Place: Bangalore 
Date: 19-04-2025 

For AR Viswanathan & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No. 0 

--A-v q \----1~ 

Shraddha A 
Partner 

Membership No: 227999 
UDIN: 25227999BMKZXG3760 
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"Annexure A" to the Independent Auditors Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory 
Requirements' of our report of even date to the standalone financial statements of 
the company for the year ended 31st March, 2025) 

As per the books and records produced before us and as per the information and 
explanations given to us and based on such audit checks that we considered 
necessary and appropriate, we confirm that: 

i. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible 
Assets: 

ii. 

a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of all Property, 
Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets having 

useful life. 
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars of intangible assets. 

b. As per the information and explanation given us, all Property, Plant 
and Equipment, right-of-use assets and other Intangible assets have 
been physically verified by the management during the year which in 
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to size of the company and 
the nature of its assets. As explained to us no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification. 

c. As per the information and explanation given us and based on the 

examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of 5 

pieces of immovable properties are not held in the name of the 

company in respect of lands allotted by KIADB amounting to Rs. 31.10 

Lakhs, the Lease cum sale agreements were entered into, however 

absolute sale deed yet to be executed. 

d. As per the information and explanation given to us the Company has 

not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right 

of-use assets). 

e. As per the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings 
have been initiated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benaml property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 
2016) and rules made thereunder. 

a. The company is a service company, primarily rendering transportation of 
petroleum products. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories 
other than stores, spares and project surplus. 

i. The management has conducted physical verification of such 
inventories at the end of the year. 
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ii. No material discrepancies were noticed during such 
verification. 

b. The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of~ 5 
crore, in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or 
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence 
reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

iii. As per the information and explanation given to us, the company has not 
made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any 
loans, secured or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties. Hence 
reporting under clause 3(iii) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable. 

iv. As per the information provided and explanation given to us, there are no 
loans, investments, guarantees, and security under section 185 and 186 of 
the Companies Act 2013. Hence the provisions of clause 3{iv) of paragraph 3 
of the Order are not applicable. 

v. As per the information provided and explanation given to us, the Company 
has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. 
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable 

vi. As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company maintains 
accounts and records pursuant to rules made by the Central Government 
under section 148(1) of the Act, in respect of Company's products to which 
the said rules are made applicable. We have, however, not made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are 
accurate or complete. 

vii. 

a. As per the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 
Goods and service tax, provident fund, income-tax, cess and other 
statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the 
company did not have any dues on account of employee' s state insurance, 
duty of customs and duty of excise. 
As per the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of aforesaid dues were outstanding as on 
March 31, 2025 for a period of more than 6 months from the date they 
became payable. 
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b. As per the information and explanations given to us, the following 
statutory dues have not been deposited on account of dispute: 

Statute Nature of dues Amount Forum where dispute 
Rs.in is pending 
lakhs 

Income tax Act, Income tax 30.40 Commissioner of 
1961 for FY 2016-17 Income Tax (Appeal) 

viii. As per the information and explanations given to us, there were no 
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961(43 of 1961}. Hence, reporting under clause 
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. 

ix. As per the information and explanations given to us, the company does not 
have any loans or borrowings from a financial institution, bank, Government 
or issued any debenture. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

x. As per the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 
3(x} of the Order is not applicable. 

xi. 

a. No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the year. 

b. No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has 
been f iled in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and 
up to the date of this report. 

c. As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not 
received any whistle blower complaints during the year. 

xii. The company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xii) of 
the Order is not applicable. 
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xiii. As per the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act,2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have 
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the 
applicable account ing standards. 

xiv. 

xv. 

xvi. 

xvii. 

xviii. 

xix. 

a. In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business. 

b. We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, 
issued to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the 
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and also is not a core 
investment company (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2016). Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b), (c) and 
(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered 
by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year. 

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company 
during the year and hence clause 3{xviii) is not applicable to the company. 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization 
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the 
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting 
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the 
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 
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a. As per the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent 
amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than 
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to 
the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of 
Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable for the year. 

b. As per the information and explanations given to us, there are no ongoing 
projects, where the Company has any unspent Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) amount as at the end of the previous financial year, to a 
Special account within a period of 30 days from the end of the said financial 
year as per the provision of section 135(6) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(xx}(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

Place: Bangalore 
Date: 19-04-2025 

For AR Viswanathan & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No. 04765 

-tw Q ,,,____~ 
Shraddha A 

Partner 
Membership No: 

UDIN: 25227999BMKZXG376O 
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(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & 
Regulatory Requirements' of our report of even date to the standalone financial 
statements of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2025) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. 
Petronet MHB Limited ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with 
our audit of the standalone fihancial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opm1on on the Company's internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI 
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
\nan & adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their 

!c--~·~--...Co 
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.s SH · ·•· ~ 
~ M. No. 227999 g; 
6;. Banga\ore-\8 ;. 

~. ----- ~,§' '171' ~ \\ 
ft.red Ac,;,uv 

Page 12 of 15 



# 156, 3'd Floor, Puttanna Chetty Road, 
5th Main Road,Chamarajpet, 
Bengaluru - 560 018, 

'B' 080-26602139, 22427014 
181 shraddha@arvco.in 
G http://arvco.in 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting. 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or t hat the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
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In our opinion, t he company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial 
control over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2025, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the 
essentia l components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Bangalore 
Date: 19-04-2025 

For AR Viswanathan & Co 
Chartered Accounta 
Firm Regn No. 0476 

-A\Jgl,.----~, 
Shraddha AV 

Partner 
Membership No: 2279 

UDIN:25227999BMKZXG376 
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"Annexure -C" to the Independent Auditors Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 3 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory 
Requirements' of our report of even date to the standalone financial statements of 
t he company for t he year ended 31st M arch, 2025) 

Direction: I. Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting 
transactions through IT system? If yes, the implicat ions of processing of accounting 
transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along with the financial 
implications, if any, maybe stated 

Observation: The Company is using an IT - ERP system viz. SAP in which the accounting 
transactions are processed. The accounting transactions including the payroll are inbuilt in 
the IT-ERP system. The company does not have any outside IT software that needs to be 
integrated in the accounts. 

Direction: II. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/ write 
off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company due to the company's 
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial Impact may be stated. Whether such cases 
are properly accounted for? 

Observation: There are no restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver write off of 
debts, loans, interest, etc., made by lender to the company due to the company's ability to 
repay the loan. 

Direction: Ill. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/receivable for specific schemes 
from Central/State Government or its agencies were properly accounted for/ utilized as per 
its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation. 

Observation: No funds were received/receivable for specific schemes from Central / State 
Government or its agencies. 

Place: Bangalore 
Date: 19-04-2025 

For AR Viswanathan & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 04 

~~'----

Shraddha AV 
Partner 

Membership No: 227999 
UDIN:25227999BMKZXG3760 
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Petrone! MHB Limited 
Balllnce Sheet as at Man:b 31, 2025 

Rs. /11 lakhs 

Note No. As at Man:b 31, 2025 As at Man:h 31, 2024 

ASSETS 
Non-cun-ent assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(b) Right-of-use assets 
(c) Capital work-in-progress 
(d) investment Property 
(e) Other Intangible assets 
(f) Financial Assets 

(i) Loans 
(ii) Other financial assets 

(g) Other non-current assets 
Total Non - Current Assets 

C urrent assets 
(a) inventories 
(b) fimncial Assets 

(i) Trade receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 
(iv) Loans 
(v) Other financial assets 

(c) Current Tax Assets(Net) 
(d) Other current assets 

Assets classified as held for sale 

Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LlABILITIES 
Equity 

(a) Equity Share capital 
(b) Other Equity 

Liabilities 
N OO-(UITTnl liabilities 

(a) Financial LiabiHties 

Total Current Assets 

Total equity 

2 
2.1 
2.2 
3 
4 

5, 1 
5 
7 

8 

9 
LO 
II 

5.1 
s 

7. 1 
12 

l3 

14 
14. J 

(i) Lease liabilities I 6.1 
(ii) Trade payables I 5 

Dues of Micro & Small Enterprises 
Dues to Creditor other than Micro & Small Enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 
(b) Provisions 17 
tc) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6 

Tolal Non - Current Liabilities 
Cttrrent liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(i) Lease I iabilities 16.1 
(ii) Trade payables 15 

Dues of Micro & Small Enterprises 
Dues to Creditor other than Micro & Small Enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabilities l6 
(b) Other cWTent liabilities 18 
(c) Current tax liabilities (Net) 7.2 
(d) Provisions 17 

Total Current LiabilitieJ 

fotal Equity and Liabilities 

The acco111pa11yi11g notes J to 37 form a11 i111es:ral part oftheji11011cial state111e111s. 

11,585.87 11.471.31 
6,395.02 584.88 

375.32 562.75 
6.97 7.09 

848.71 866.32 

8.46 
282.47 207.52 

50.87 I 508.08 
19,553.69 15 207.96 

322.00 265.84 

3,812.32 l,860.59 
405.95 241.74 

43,219.48 44,156.53 
0.71 

2,191.97 2,132.63 
77.91 
99.14 129.33 

50129.48 48 786.66 

333.27 333.27 

70,016.44 64,327.89 

54,870.73 54,870.73 
3.585.34 4,093.03 

58,456.07 58,963.76 

6,486.47 736.77 

16.18 657.69 
467.96 405.30 

J.403.36 1,528.01 
8,373.97 3 327.77 

534.38 73.82 

438.79 91.72 
768.67 351.96 
582.09 441.72 
693.94 823.26 

103.24 
168.53 150.64 

3,186.41 2,036.36 

70 016.44 64 327.89 

,'{','3n & r our ~eport of even date attached 
/, ,~· Viswanathan & Co. (or and on behalfoftbe Board ~Directors of 

/ -l~ ed Accountants 
I .J •'!i/O'Y,'>- gistrallon Number: 04765S 

c,,,i... 11 
'11() • n 

~- .. . ,c110 K l--- ---r''C,--
'o~•·" 

, er 
embership Number: 227999 

Place: Bangalore 
Date : 19/04/2025 

Petrone! MBB Limited 

~~ 
Ma11af{i11R Director 

"™'Qt 
Cbandan Ku~as 
Chief Fina11c1al Officer 

Place : Bangalore 
Date : 19/04/2025 

Direct 
DIN:10304253 

S~aswal 
Comva11v Secretary 



Petronet MHB Limited 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Revenue from operations 

Other Income 

Total Income 

Expenses 

Employee benefit expense 

Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Other expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 

Exceptional Jtems 

Settlement oflegal claim 

Profit before tax 

Tax Expense 

Curreot tax 

Deferred tax 

Total tax expense 

Profit for the period 

Other comprehensive income 
Items that will not be recycled to profit or loss 

Reme;iswellleots of the defined benefit liabilities/ 
(asset) 
Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or Joss 

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 

Others (specify nature) 

Note No. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

2,2.1,3 &4 

23 

24 

6 
6 

Year ended March 
31, 2025 

16,285.41 

4,319.78 

20,605.19 

1,135.88 

761.91 

1,441.76 

3,662.78 

7,002.33 

13,602.86 

2,403.46 

11,199.40 

3,017.74 

(122.82) 

2,894.92 

8,304.49 

(7.26) 

1.83 

Income tax on items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 

Total Other comprehensive income, net of tax 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Earnings per equity share 
Basic 

Diluted 

27 

27 

(5.43) 

8,299.06 

1.5 I 

1.51 

The accompanying notes I to 37 form an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached ----,nan iswanathan & Co. 
b Accountants 

',lii,.llll\\ 

\ ex- , l'\O 2 
\~· 3nc;;a\ 

,'!:>,~d 

tratiooNumber: 04765S 

1---- --T'\C----

Place ; Bangalore 
Date : 19/04/2025 

for and on behalf of the Board 
Petronet MHB Limited 

Managing Director 

orn~L 

Chandan Kumar Das 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Bangalore 
Date : 19/04/2025 

Rs. In lakhs 

Year ended March 
31,2024 

14,955.16 

3,612.85 

18,568.01 

1,033.03 

98.98 

1,075.08 

3,412.80 

5,619.89 

12,948.13 

U,948.13 

3,310.15 

1241 

3,322.56 

9,625.57 

(63.53) 

15.99 

(47.54) 

9,578.03 

1.75 
1.75 

Rames~samy 
Director 
DIN:L 304253 

Sa~yaswal 
Companv Secretary 
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Petronet MHB Limited 
Statement of changes in Equity 
A. Equity Share Capital 

(.I) Current reporting period 

Balance as at April 1, 2024 
54,870.73 
54,ISIU,73 

(2) Pervious reporting period 

Balance as at Anril 1, 2023 
54,870.73 
54,5/U,/-' 

B. Other Equity 

muance as at Apru 1 .. u .... 

Changes in accounting policy or 
prior period errors 
Restated balance as at April 1 
2024 
Profit for the Period 
Actuarial gainSl'(loss) on account 
of re-measurement of defined 
benefit plans 
Total comprehensive income 
for the )'ear 
Other comprehensive income for 
the year 
Dividends 
Transfer to retained earnings 
Any other Change ( to be 

specified) 

HBlaoce as at Marco ., I -'U-':, 

Changes in Equity Share 
Capital due to prior 

Period Errors 
. 
. 

Changes in Equity Share 
Capital due to prior 

Period Errors 
. 
. 

Share Equity 
Application component 

money of compound 
pending for financial 
allotment instruments 

. . 

. -
- -
. -

- -

- -
. . 
- . 
. . 

- -

- . 

Restated Balance as at Changes in equity share 
Anril I, 2024 canital durinl>' the vear 

54,870.73 . 

54,870.73 . 

Restated Balance as at Changes in equity share 
April 1, 2023 capital dur-in" the vear 

54 870.73 . 
54,870.73 -

Reserves & Surplus Equity 
Instruments 

through 
Retained Capital General other 
earnings reserve reserve comprehens 

iveincome 

4,u:,.>,U.J - . . 

. - - . 

4,093.03 - - . 

8,304.49 

(5.43) - - . 

8,299.06 - -
. . - . 

(8,806.75) . . -
- . . -
. . . . 

J,5<>:,.J4 - - -

Rs. In /akhs .. ., . ... ·-·-·-

Balance as at March,31 
2025 

54,870.73 
54,870.73 

Rs. In lakhs -- . -.. --- -· ·-

Balance as at Marcb,31 
2024 

54,870.73 
54,870.73 

Rs. In lakhs 

Debt Other items 
Money Total Equity 

Jnstruments of Other 
received attributable to 

through Revaluation Comprehen 
aga.inst equity holders 

other Surplus sive lncome 
share orthe 

comprehens (specify 
warrant Company 

iveincome nature) 

. . - . 4 ,u;,-1,U.) 

. - - - . 

- - . - 4,093.03 
8,304.49 

- . - - (5.43) 

- - . . 8,299.06 

. - - - -

- - - . (8,806.75) 

- - . - . 

. - . -

- . - - .,,5115.34 



Petrooet MflB Limited 
Statement of changes in Equity 

. 

Balance as at April I :ZU:ZJ 

Changes in accounting policy or 
prior period errors 
Restated balance as at April 1 
2023 
Profit for the Period 
Actuarial gainsl(loss) on account 
of re-measurement of defined 
benefit plans 
Total comprehensive income 
for the year 
Other comprehensive income for 
the year 
Dividends 
Transfer to retained earnings 
Any other Change ( to be 

specified) 

Balance as at March 31 2Ul4 

Share Equity 
Application component 

money of compound 

pending for financial 
allotment instruments 

- -
. 

. -
- -

. . 

- -

- -
- -
- -
. -

- . 

Reserves & Sur, lus 
Equity Debt 

l.ostruments Instruments 

through through Revaluation 
Retained Capital General 

other other Surplus 
earnings reserve reserve comprebens comprebens 

ive income iveincome 

3,486.37 - - . - -

- . . - . -
3,486.37 . - - . -
9,625.57 . . . , . -

(47.54) - - - - . 

9,578.03 - - . - -
. - - - -

(8,971 .36) - . - . 

- - - - - -
- . . - -

4,093.03 - . . . . 

The accompanying notes J to 3 7 form an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

_ ~ for A.R. Viswanatban & Co • 
. ~-~\f-0 1"\ 6 Cq Chartered Accountants 

';<>' 1• nn Reg1strat1on Number: 04765S 

I <.? • ~\\f. !:,.'.~ ®.v,_,;, 
:£ { s\\it.\"l .;1??1<.:.- • n 
ct \ •A ~o - •~ • , ~ 1.,--------­

&. : '3.i~~;,\(:ll:'\ .. _i /4. taddba AV -
~ ....... ' 
. ()/"...__...· ,, artner 
~~./ Membership Number: 227999 

\)0 '"" l.-"';12..'7 "\ .;i ~ ~)\>\.,.___'2-)0 ~ '> "'l<,..e 

Place : Bangalore 
Date : 19/04/2025 

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Petronet MHB Limited 

~-£-
Managing Director 

DIN J<l<'C 

Cba~K~Das 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Bangalore 
Date : 19/04/2025 

~~ 
Director 
DlN:10304253 

~ Sachm Jayaswal 
Company Secretary 

Rs. In lakhs 

Other items 
Total Equity Money 

of Other 
received attributable to 

Comprehe.n 
against equity holders 

si\le Income 
share oftbe 

(specify 
warrant Company 

nature) 

3,486.37 

- . -
. - 3,486.37 

- . 9,625.57 

. - (47.54) 

. - 9,578.03 

- - -
- - (8,971.36) 

- - -
- . -

- - 4,093.03 



Petrone! MHB Limited 

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Rs.111 /okhs 

Year ended March Yearended March 
Particulars 31, 2025 31, 2024 

A. Cash Oow from operating activities: 

Profit for the period before tax 1),199-40 12,948.13 

Adjustme./lts to reconcile net profit 10 net cosh provided by operating octil•ilies: 
Depreciation and amortization 

Loss on disposal offixed asse1s 

!nlerest income on fixed deposits 
Finance Charges on Lease 

Ner gain on lease modification 

Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets 

Other adjustments 

Changes m assets and liabilities 

Trade rece-ivables 

Other financial assets 

Loans 
Inventories 

Other assets 

Trade payables 

Other fina11cial liabili1ies 

Provisions and other liabilities 

Cash generated from operations 

Income laxes paid 

Net cash generated from operating activities 

B. Cash now from investing activities: 
Acquisition of property, plan! and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment 
Capital advance-s 
Bank Deposits nol considered as cash and cash equivalents 
Interest received on fixed deposits 

Net cash from investing acrivities 

C. Cash now rrom financiog activities: 
Interest expense on lease liabilities 
Payment of lease liabilities 

Payment of Interim dividends 

Net cash used in 6nancing activities 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash eqllivalent!I 

Cash and cash equivalents at !lie beginning of the period 

Cash and cash equivalent!I at the end of tbe period 

1,441.76 

(3,939.44) 

754.99 

(238.66) 

(1.50) 

6.92 

(1,951.73) 

(56.32) 

(9. 17) 

(56.16) 

1,487-40 

763.78 

(501.14) 

(56_03) 

8,844.10 
(2.967_17) 

5,876.93 

(509.44) 
6 .92 

(375.32) 
937.05 

3,622.84 

3,682,05 

(528.95) 
(59.06) 

(8.806_75) 

{9,394.77} 

164.21 
241.74 

405.95 

1,075.08 

0.83 

(3,494.10) 

83.71 

15.27 

{I 19_86) 

21.15 

(15.40) 

(40, 11) 

13.84 

119.14 

97.73 

10,705.41 
12,971.36) 

7,734.04 

(340.48) 
1.27 

(184_27) 
(694.55) 
2,788.55 

1,570.SJ 

(83.71) 
(119.54) 

!8,971.361 
{9,174.62) 

129.95 
11 1.79 

241.74 

The occompo11yi11g 1101es 1 to 37 form an integral parl ofthefi11a11cial state111e111s. 

As per our report of even date attached 

for A. R. Vi.ffl'anatban & Co. 

Place • Bangalore 
Date : 19/04/2025 

r. 
fo,.., 00 ~..,, ., .. - ·~ 

~~ ~L 
Ma110RillR Director Di rec 

D~ '~L D • 0304253 

Cbandan Ku as Sa~wal 
Chief Fi11011ciol Officer 

Place : Ban~alore 
Date : 19/04/2025 

Co111po11v Secretary 



Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

I CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Petrone! MHB Limited (The 'Company') was incorporated oa 31st July, 1998 on common carrier principle to 
provide petroleum product transportation facility from Mangalore Refinery at Mangalore to the Oil Marketing 
Companies Terminals at Hassan & Devanagonthi (Bangalore). The Company is a Public Limited Company 
incorporated & domiciled in India. Its shares are not listed on any recognised stock exchanges in India. The 
registered office of the company is located at # Corporate Miller 2nd Floor Block B ,332/1 , Thimmaih Road , 

Vasanth Nagar , Bangalore Kamataka- 560 052. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.1. Statement of Compliance 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (lnd ASs) notified 

under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

1.2. Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments 

which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes 
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into 

account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

The Corporation's Presentation currency and Functional currency is Indian Rupees (Rs). All figures appearing in the 
Financial Statements are rounded to the nearest lakhs (Rs Lakhs) , except where otherwise indicated. 

1.3. Use of estimates and judgements 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

The company makes estimates and takes assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, 
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estin1ates and assumptions that have a significant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 

discussed below. 

1.3.l Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This 

reassessment may resuJt in change in depreciation expense in future periods. 

1.3.2 Valuation of deferred tax assets 
The company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The policy for 

the same has been explained under Note 1. 1 1.2. 



Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

1.3.3 Provisions ,Contingent liabilities & Contingent Assets 
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that 
an outflow of resources wil 1 be required to settle the obligat ion, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 
Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its present value and are 
detemuned based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at 
each balance sheet date adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities & Contingent assets are 
not recognised in the financial statements, however contingent liabilities and Contingent assets are disclosed in the 
financial statement. 

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Financial Statements in the period in which the 

estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. 

1.4. Current versus non-current classification 

The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset 
is treated as current when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporti.ng period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period 
The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

1.5. Assets held for sale 

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale, if their carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only 
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to tenns that 
are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must 
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year 

from the date of classification. 

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell. 

1.6. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of Control of Promised products or services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services . 

1.6.1. r.ncome from Services 

\ 

Transportation income is recognised as upon transfer of service to the customer i.e. on delivery of petroleum 
products to oil marketing companies. Revenue is recognised by allocating the transaction price as per agreed tariff 

distinct service . 

- SHMODH~ .. A. 
Ct-: M. No 2279 



Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

1.6.2. Interest Income 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate 
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 

financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

1.6.3. Other Income 
Insurance claims are accounted on acceptance of claims by respective Insurance Companies. The liquidated damage 
recovered from contracts (both revenue and capital contracts ) is recognised as income as and when recovered. 

1. 7. Le.ases 

The Company's Lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land and Building . The Company assesses 
whether a Contract contains a lease, at inception of a Contract. A contract is or contains , a lease if the contact 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets for a period of t ime in exchange for consideration .To 
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: 
(i)tbe contract involves the use of an identified asset , (ii) the Company bas substantially all of the economic benefits 
from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a 
corresponding lease liability for al l lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve 
months or less(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-tenn and low value leases, the Company 
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

The lease liability is injtially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if not readily determinable,using the 

incremental borrowing rates oftbese leases. 

1.8. F oreign Currency 

In preparing the financial statements of the company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional 
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the 
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retransl_ated at the rates 
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are 
measured in tenns of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences on monetary 
items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 

1.9. Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are 
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the 
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 

assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

' . . ~ 
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Petronet MBB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

1.10. Employee Benefits 

1.10.1. Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits 
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have 

rendered service entitling them 1o the contributions. 

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit 
credit method. with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re­
measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceUing (if applkable) and 
the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit 
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other 
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past 
service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying 
the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are 
l'.i,ti>onri<Prl ~• follow•· 

• service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as weU as gains and losses on curtailments and 

settlements): 
• net interest expense or income; and 

• re-measurement 

The company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 'Employee 
benefits expense'. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs. 

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the 
company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any 
economic benefits available in the fonn of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans. 

A liability for a temlination benefit is recogrused at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of 
the tennination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs. 

1.10.2. Short-term and other long-term employee benefits 
A liability is recognised for ben~fits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick 
leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in 

exchange for that service. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the 

benefits e>..1>ected to be paid in exchange for the related service. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the 
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by U1e company in respect of services provided by employees up 
to the reporting date. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 

recognised in profit or loss. 

1.10.3. Defined Contribution Plans-Provident Fund & NPS 

The Company makes contribution to Provident Fund which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. 
Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the 
benefits. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. 

The Company had introduced NPS for its employees w.e.f O l January 2023 within the overall limit of Retirement 
The obligation of the Company is to contribute to NPS to the extent of amount not exceeding 30% 
eamess allowance as reduced by the employer's contribution towards provident fund and gratuity. 



Petrooet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

1.1 J. Taxation 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

I.I I.I. Current tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as 
reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in 
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The company' s current tax is calculated using tax rates 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

1.11.2. Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences benveen the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities 
are generally recognised for alJ taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all 
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which 
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to tl1e ex-tent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be 

recovered. 

Defe.rred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the ta,x rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the 
liability is settled or the asset realised. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax 
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the end of the reporting period, 
to recover or senle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

1.11.3. Current and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in wh.ich case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other 

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

1.12. Property, Plant & Equipment 

Land and buildings held for use in the supply of services or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance 
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impainnent losses. 

Properties in the course of construction for supply or admiltistrative purposes are carried at c-0st, less any recognised 
impainnent loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance 
with the company's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant 
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other 
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. 

Freehold land is not depreciated. 

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impainnent losses. 

1.12.1. Depreciation: 
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets ( other than freehold land and properties under 
construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, 
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 
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Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Estimated useful iives of property, plant & equipment is as specified below. Residual value is taken at 5%. 

Buildin!! 3 years to 30 years 

Comouter eauioment 3 years 

Server 6 vears 
Plant and Eauinment• 10 to 15 vears 

- Solar Power Plant : 25 vears 
Roads: 5 years 

Pioeline: 30 years 
Office eauioment: 5 years 

Furniture and fix'tllres* : 3 to l O vears 

•- Based on the evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period 
over which the management expects to use the assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the 
useful lives as prescribed under Schedule .0 of the Companies Act. 2013. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount 

of the asset and is recognised in orofit or loss. 

1.13. intangible Assets 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-iine basis over their estimated useful 
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the 
e.tfect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. 

Jntangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated 
impainnent losses. 

1.)3.1. Dere,cognition of intangible assets 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal. or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is 

derecognised. 

1.13.2. Useful lives of intangible assets 
Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows: 
Ri ht ofWa Indefinite 

6 ears 

1.14. Impairment of Non-Fina.nciaJ Assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the, company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets 
with finite iife, to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impainnent loss. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impainnent loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the 
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment 
, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. 



Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, tbe 
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

When an impainnenl loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash­
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in p_rofit or loss. 

1.15. lnventories 

Inventories that comprise of stores and spares (which qualify as inventories) are stated at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted averag\: basis. Net realisable value repre~ents the 
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. 

1.16. Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognised as a prov1s1on is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties sw·rounding the 
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its can')'ing 
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the etfoct of the time value of money is material). 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle, a provision is expected to be recovered from a tl1ird 
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the 

amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

1.16.1. Onerous contracts 
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions._ An onerous contract 
is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the 
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract 

1.17. F inancial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabiljties are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, 
except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the 
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 

1.17.1. Financial assets 
AU regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular 
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame 
established bv regulation or convention in the marketolace. 



Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

1.17 .2. Classification of financial assets 

Financial assets at amortised cost 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business 
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held 
within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets 
and the contractual tenns of the financial asset give rise 011 specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial asse1s a1 fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair 
value through other comprehensive inc-0me on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in 

statement of profit and loss. 

1.l 7.3. Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

1.17.4 . Effective interest method 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating 
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that fonn an integral part of the effective interest rate, 
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where 

appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition. 

1.17.5. lmpail'ment of financial assets 
The company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impainnent loss on financial assets measured at 
amortised cost. Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default 
occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company 
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the company expects to receive, discounted at the original 
effective interest rate. The company estimates cash .flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial 
instrument through the eKpected life of that financial instrument. 

The company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected 
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. Iftl1e 
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the company measures 
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month 
expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses an.d represent the lifetin1e cash shortfalls that 
will r efault occurs within the 12 months after the repo1ting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are 
p ~ a ! ex.1 12 months . 
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Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

If the company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at Lifetime expected credit loss model in the 
previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly 
since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous period. the company again 
measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses. 

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, 
the company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument 
instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the company compares the 
risk of a default occurring on the :financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on 
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, 
that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial 
recognition. 

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions 
that an~ within the scope of Ind AS 115 , the company always measures tbe loss allowance at an amount equal to 

lifetime expected credit losses. 

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the company has 
used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. 111is expected credit loss allowance is computed based on 
a provision matrix which taJces into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking 

infonnation. 

The impainnent requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt 
instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is not 
reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet. 

1.17.6. Derecognition of financial assets 
The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or 
when it transfers the :financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of tbe asset to another 
party. lf t11e company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues 
to control the transferred asset, the company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated UabiJity for 
amounts it may have to pay. If the company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a 
transferred financial asset, the company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised 

borrowin!! for the oroceeds received. 

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of 
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or Loss if such gain or loss would have 
otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. 

On de-recognition of a :financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the company retains an option to 
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset 
between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the 
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount 
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer 
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is 
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of 
that :financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated 
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative 

fair values of those parts. 

1.18. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The company considers all highly liquid :financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of 
cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less 
from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which 
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1.19. Trade Receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised initially al their transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost 

using effect interest rate method. less provision for impairment. 

1.20. Trade & other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of the financial 
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and 
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due with.in 12 months after the reporting 
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method. 

1.21. lnvestment properties 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impainnent loss, if any. 

The Company depreciates building component of investment property over 30 years from the date of original 
construction, based on the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 using the straight-l ine 
method. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the 

period over which the assets are likely to be used. 

Though the company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment 
property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based either on the latest available infonnation based on 
'stamp duty - annual statement of rates' applicable to the area in which the land is situated, market comparison 
approach or on periodical evaluation performed by an external independent valuer. 

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are pennanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. 

1.22. Earnings per Share 

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The Company does not have any 
potentially dilutive securities. 

1.23. Dividends 

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the 
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting 

period. 

1.24. Rounding of amounts 

All amount • financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the 

require Jj.,;:II-IJ£WLY,tl''4,U, nless otherwise stated. 
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Note No. 2 - Tangible Assets 

I/:/. In lalchs 

Description or Assets Land- Buildings- Computers and Plant and Road! Pipeline Office Fumitun, Total 

Fredlold Frfthold Data Processing Equipment - Equipment and 

Equipment's Fn,ehold Fi,tures 

LGros.,Block 

Balance as at I April, 2024 
37.16 2,166.69 234.43 9,068.57 232.73 6,253.02 138.14 161.38 18,392.23 

Additions 5,17 1S9·.17 20.12 812.S7 11.12 28.37 1.S2 l,038.04 

Disposals 4.0S 7.73 16.00 7.18 34,96 

Reclassified as held for sale 
Bal.once as at 31 Marth, 2025 42.43 2.425.86 250.S0 9,873.41 243.85 6,237.02 166.51 JSS.71 J9,3~5.3I 

IL Accumulated depn,cation and impairment ror the year 2024-25 
Balance as at I April, 2024 819.02 112.07 3,717.83 123.02 J,975.05 82.SI 9L.42 6,920.92 

Depreciation / amortisation expense for the year 107.66 38.05 463.27 19.01 258.7Q 16.56 14.76 918.07 

Eliminated on disposal of assets 3,85 2.89 16.00 6.81 29.55 

Eliminated on reclassification as held for sale 
Balance as at 31 Mllrdi, 2025 926.68 146.27 4,178.21 142.03 2,117.81 99.07 99.37 7,809.44 

Net block(J.11) 
Balance as on 31st March 2025 0.43 1,499.)9 104.23 5,695.20 101.82 4,019.21 67.44 56.35 I 8587 

Balance as on I st M 2024 37.26 1,447.68 I 2.36 S,350.74 I .71 4,277. 7 55.63 6 .96 I 1
1
471._}J 

Description of Asset• Land- Buildings - Computers and Plant and Roads Pipeline Office Furnitun, Total 

F'n,ehold Fredlold Data Processing Equipment - Equipme-nt and 

Equipment's F....,hold Futun,s 

L Gross Block 
Balance as al I April, 2023 37.08 2,219'.22 170.09 8,960.91 232.73 6,198.93 101.26 168.00 18,088.23 

Additions 0.18 47.-47 67.03 110.05 54.09 37.10 2.23 318.15 

Disposals 2.69 2.39 0.22 8,85 14.15 

Reclassified as held fur sale 
Balance as at 31 M arcb, 2024 37.26 U66.69 234.43 9,068.57 232.73 6,253.02 l38.i4 161.38 18,392.23 

U. Accumulated depreciati.on and impairment for the year 2023-24 
Balance a., a t I April, 2023 700.92 82.81 3,261.20 96.32 1,727.18 71.62 82.63 6,022.68 

Depreciation / amoctisation expense fur the year 118,10 31.82 458.19 26.70 247.87 10.95 16.67 910.30 

Eliminated on disposal of assets 2.56 1.56 0.06 7.88 12.06 

Eliminated on reclassi6cation as held for sale -
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 819.02 112.07 3,717.83 123.02 1,975.05 82.51 91.42 6,920.92 

Net block (H!l 
Balance as on 31st Man:.b 2024 :h.26 1,447.68 12236 5,350.74 109.71 4;277.97 55.63 69.96 11,471,31 

Balance as on 31st March 2023 37.08 1,518.31 87.28 5,699.71 136.41 4,471.75 29,64 85.37 12 065.55 

Notes: 

,f!!i 

/) Plant & Machinery i11c/udes Rs 667,118 lal<hs ( P. Y.-667.08 lakhs) in respect of pipeline i11trus/011 detection system which is joint controlled a.«ets with HPCL. 

2) land freehold includes five land al/qtted by KIADB for which lease cum sole agreemen/ en/ered into and the absolute sale deed yet to be executed. 
liJ ~-' ,JI 
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Note No. 2.1 -Right of use Assets 

Description of Assets 

I. Gross Block 
Balance as at 1 April, 2024 
Additions on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 
Disposals or classified as held for sale 
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 

Il. Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment for the year 2024-25 
Balance as at 1 April, 2024 
Depreciation expense for the period 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Balance as at 31st March ,2025 

Net block (I-TI) 
Balance as at March 31, 2025 
Balance as on 31st March 2024 

Description of Assets 

I. Gross Block 
Balance as at 1 April, 2023 
Additions on account ofadopt ion oflnd AS 116 
Disposals or classified as held for sale 
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 

II. Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment for the year 2023-24 
Balance as at 1 April, 2023 
Depreciation expense for the period 
Balance as at 31st March ,2024 

Net block (1-11) 

Ba.lance as on 31st March 2023 

Note No. 2.2 - Capital Work In Progress 

Particulars 

Unallocated Capital Expenditure 

Total 

Prepaid Lease 

14.04 

14.04 

4.30 

4.30 

9.74 

Prepaid Lease 

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2025 is as follows: 

Amount in ca ital work-in-
Less than 

Land 

998.65 
6669.03 

998.65 
6,669.03 

417.72 
418.30 
417.72 

418.30 

6,250.73 
580.93 

Land 

998.65 

998.65 

334.50 
83.22 

417.72 

580.93 
664.15 

Building 

254.76 
193.85 
254.76 
193.85 

250.81 
63.25 

254.76 
59.30 

134.55 
3.95 

Building 

254.76 

254.76 

202.84 
47.97 

250.81 

3.95 
51.92 

Rs. In lakhs 

Total 

1,253.41 
6,876.92 
1,253.41 
6,876.92 

668.53 
485.85 
672.48 
481.90 

6,395.02 
584.88 

Total 

1,253.41 

1,253.41 

537.34 
131.19 
668.53 

584.88 
716.07 

Rs. In /akhs 
Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

375.32 562.75 

375.32 562.75 

Rs. in lakhs 

1 ear 1 - 2 ears 2 - 3 years years 
Total 

ss 375.32 375.32 
Total 375.32 375.32 



Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31 , 2024 is as follows 

Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of 
Less than More than 3 

Capital Work in progress 1 year 
Project in progress 

Total 

Note No. 3 - Investment Property 

Description of Assets 

I. Gross Block 
Balance as at l April, 2024 
Additions relating to acquisitions 
Disposals or classified as held for sale 
Balance as at 31 March, 2025 

II. Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment for the year 2024-25 
Balance as at 1 April, 2024 
Depreciation expense for the year 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Eliminated on reclassification as held for sale 
Balance as at 31 March , 2025 

Net block (I-fl) 
Balance as at 31 March , 2025 
Balance as on 31st March 2024 

Description of Assets 

I.Gross Block 
Balance as at 1 April, 2023 
Additions relating to acquisitions 
Disposals or classified as held for sale 
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 

II. Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment for the year 2023-24 
Balance as at 1 April, 2023 
Depreciation expense for the year 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Eliminated on reclassification as held for sale 
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 

Net block (I-II) 
Balance as on 31st March 2024 
Balance as on 31st March 2023 

Notes: 

184.26 
184.26 

I} Assets pledged as security:- Nil ( Previous year -Nil). 

1 - 2 years 
262.37 
262.37 

2 - 3 years years 
107.71 
107.71 

Land 

5.17 

5.17 

5.17 
5.17 

Land 

5.17 

5.17 

5.17 
5.17 

8.40 
8.40 

Building 

3.00 

3.00 

1.08 
0.12 

1.20 

1.80 
l.92 

Building 

3.00 

3.00 

0.96 
0.12 

1.08 

1.92 
2.04 

Rs. In lakhs 

Total 

562.75 
562.75 

Rs. In lakhs 

Total 

8.17 

8.17 

1.08 
0.12 

1.20 

6.97 
7.09 

Total 

8.17 

8.17 

0.96 
0.12 

1.08 

7.09 
7.21 

ncome earned or expenditure incurred on the above Investment Property other than land revenue of 
Year 0. JO lakh ). The fair value of the Property as per Valuation report issued by Mr. Feroz N Raaj, 

ed Valuer is Rs. 22.11 lakhs . 

. ~ ~ - tlrl>. J; 

\ . • • $:.;lllJ3IO, 



Petronet MH13 Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note No. 4 - Other Intangible Assets 
Rs. In lakhs 

Description of Assets fflglit oF Way Soi'iware Total 

Intangible Assets 
I. Cost or deemed cost 
Balance as at 1 April, 2024 757.13 218.32 975.46 
Additions 20.11 20.11 
Disposals or classified as held for sale 
Balance as at 31 March, 2025 757.13 238.43 995.57 

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment for the year 
2024-25 
Balance as at 1 April, 2024 109.14 109.14 

Amortisation expense for the year 37.72 37.72 

Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Eliminated on reclassification as held for sale 
Balance as at 31 March, 2025 146.86 146.86 

Net block (1-ll) 
Balance as on 31st March, 2025 757.13 91.58 848.71 
Balance as on 31st March 2024 757.13 109.19 866.32 

Description of Assets lt'lglit oF Way Soltware Total 

Intangible Assets 
I. Cost or deemed cost 
Balance as at I April, 2023 757.13 195.09 952.23 
Additions 23.23 23.23 

Disposals or classified as held for sale 
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 757.13 218.32 975.46 

Il. Accumulated depreciation and impairment for the year 
2023-24 
Balance as at l April, 2023 75.67 75.67 

Amortisation expense for the year 33.47 33.47 

Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Eliminated on reclassification as held for sale 
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 109.14 109.14 

Net block (1-11) 
Balance as on 31st March 2024 757.13 109.19 866.32 
Balance as on 31st March 2023 757.13 119.43 876.56 

Notes: 
J) The Company holds a Right of Way for laying Pipeline between Mangafore and Bangalore via Hassan. l11e cost of 
acquiring the right has been capitalised as intangible Assets. The right is an indefinite(perpetuaf) right with no 
stipulation over the period ofva/idizy. Hence the same is not amortised 



Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 5 - Other Financial Assets 

Particulars 

Non-Current 
Unsecured, considered good 

Security Deposits 
Loans havinR siRn((icant increase in credit risk/ credit impaired 

Total 

Current 
Unsecured, considered good 

Security Deposits 
Interest accrued On Deposits 

Loans having significant increase in credit risk/ credit impaired 

Total 

Note 5.1 - Loans 

Particulars 

Non-Current 
Secured, considered good 

Loans to Employees 
Loans /Javinf{ siRnificanl increase in credit risk/ credit impaired 

Total 

Current 
Secured, considered good 

Loans to Employees 
Loans havinR siRn(fkant increase in credit risk/ credit impaired 

Total 

Note 6 - Income Taxes 

Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises: 
Particulars -

Current tax for the year 
Current tax for Prior years 
Deferred taxes/ Liability 

Rs. In lakhs 
As at 

March 31 2025 March 31,2024 

282.47 

282.47 

6.60 
2.185.37 

2,191.97 

As at 

207.52 

207.52 

25.22 
2,107.41 

Rs. ln lakhs 

March 31,2025 March 31 2024 

8.46 

8.46 

0.71 

0.71 

Rs. In lakhs 
Year ended 

March 31 2025 March312024 
3,004.43 3,310.15 

13.31 0.00 
(I 22.82) 12.41 

Income tax expense 2,894.92 3,322.56 
A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income before 

income taxes is summarized below: 

Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises: 
Particulars 

Profit before income taxes 
Enacted tax rates in India 
Computed expected tax expense 
Effect of non-deductible expenses 

i.ffereoces 

Rs. In lakhs 
Year ended 

March 31,2025 March 31 2024 
11, I 99 .40 12,948. I 3 

25.17% 25.17% 
2,818.67 3,258.78 

57.17 43.5 
128.59 7.87 

3,004.43 3 310.15 



Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

1l1e applicable Income tax rate for financial year2024-25 &2023-24 is 25.168% as available U/s 115BAA - Tax on income of Certain 
Domestic companies as notified as per taxation Laws (Amendment) Act 2019. 

The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as of March 3 I, 2025 , and March 31 , 2024 

Rs. In /akhs 
As at 

March 31 2025 March 31,2024 

Income ta.,;: assets 77.91 
Current Ta.,;: Liabilities (Net) (103.24) 

Net current income tax assets/ (liability) at the end 77.91 (103.24) 

The gross movement in the current income tax asset/ (liability) for the year ended March 3 1, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is as follows: 

Rs. In lakhs 
Particulars Year ended 

March 31 2025 March 3 1 2024 

Net current income tax asset/ (liability) at the beginning 
Income tax paid 
Income tax refund received 
Current income tax expense 
Current income tax for Prior years 

Net current income tax asset/ (liability) at the end 

( 103.24) 
3,198.89 

(3,004.43) 
(13.31) 

77.91 

16.78 
3,205.90 

(15.77) 
(3,310.15) 

(103.24) 

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows: 

Particulars 

Deferred income tax assets 
Gratuity payable to employees 
Compensated absences 
Deferred tax on account of leased assets 
Others 

Total deferred income tax assets 
Deferred income tax liabilities 
Depreciation impact on PPE, Inv. Property and intangible assets 
Others 
Total deferred income tax liabilities 

Deferred income tax assets after set off 

As at 

March 31,2025 

50.45 
71.53 

159.96 

281.94 

( 1,685.31) 

(1,685.31) 

(1,403.36) 

Rs. In lakhs 

March 31 2024 

42.73 
63.15 
56.81 

162.69 

(1,690.71) 

(1,690.71) 

(1,528.01) 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities. 

In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or all of the deferred income 
tax assets wiJI not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable 
income during the periods in wbkh the temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of 
deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the 
leve. ' _' . taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets are 
' • • ent beHeves that the Company will realize the benefits of those deductible differences. 



Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 311 2025 

The gross movement in the deferred income tax account for the year ended March 31 , 2025 and March 31, 2024, are as follows: 

Particulars 

Net deferred income tax asset at the beginning 
Credits / (charge) relating to temporary differences 
Temporary differences on other comprehensive income 

Net deferred income tax asset (liability) at the end 

Note 7 - Other Non Current Assets 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 
Capital advances 

Against Land 
Advances other than Capital advances 

Prepaid Expenses 
Prepaid Employee Benefit Exp 

Others 
Court Deposit 

Loans Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk/Credit impaired 

Notes: 

Note 7.1 - Current Tax Assets 
Particulars 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Note 7.2 -Current tax liabilities (Net) 
Particulars 

Income Tax liabilities (Net) 

Note 8 - Inventories 

Particulars 

(Ar lower of cost and net realisable value) 
Stores and spares at site 

Rs. in /akhs 
Year ended 

March 31,2025 March 31 2024 

(1 ,528.01 ) 
122.82 

1.83 

(1,403.36) 

As at 
March 31,2025 

28.33 
l.51 

21.03 

50.87 

As at 

(1,531.59) 
(12.41) 

15.99 

{1,528.01) 

Rs. in lakhs 

March 31,2024 

5.00 

56.05 

1,447.03 

1,508.08 

Rs. In lakhs 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

77.91 

77.91 

Rs. In lakhs 
As at 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

103.24 

103.24 

Rs. In lakhs 
As at 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

322.00 265.84 

322.00 265.84 



Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 311 2025 

Note 9 - Trade Receivables 
Rs. In lakhs 

Particulars As at 
March 31 2025 March 31,2024 

Trade receivables, unsecured, considered good 3,812.32 1,860.59 
Trade receivables, Which have significant increase in credit Risk 
Trade receivables, -Credit Impaired 

(A) 3,812.32 11860.59 

Less: AUowances for credit losses 
(B) ___________ _ 

Total (A-B) 3,812.32 

Ageing/or trade receivables- billed-current olltstanding as at March 31, 2025 is as follows: 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars 
Lees Than 6 months -1 

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years 
More than 3 

6 Month year years 

Trade receivables - Billed 
Undisputed trade receivables - 3,587.31 224.57 0.33 0.11 

considered good 
Undisputed trade receivables -
which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
Undisputed trade receivables -

credit impaired 
Disputed trade receivables -
considered good 
Disputed trade receivables -
which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
Disputed trade receivables -
credit impaired 

Total 3 587.31 224.57 0.33 0.11 

Ageing/or trade receivables - billed-current outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is as follows: 

Particulars 

Trade receivables - Billed 
Undisputed trade receivables -

considered good 
Undisputed trade receivables -
which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
Undisputed trade receivables -

credit impaired 
Disputed trade receivables -

considered good 
Disputed trade receivables -
which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
Di .--..-. les -

ct1i! 

(tX. ,,At 
\ "',.., 
\'·/,i 
~-

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Lees Than 6 months - I 
6Month year 

1,834.68 

1834.68 

l - 2 years 

25.91 

25.91 

2 - 3 years 
More than 3 

years 

1,860.59 

Rs. in lakhs 

Total 

_3,812.32 

3.812.32 

Rs. in lakhs 

Total 

1,860.59 

1860.59 



Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 311 2025 

Note 10- Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Cash on hand 
Balances with banks: 

In current accounts 

Total 

Note 11 - Bank Balance other than above 

Particulars 

Balances with banks: 
Bank Deposits for original maturity more than 3 months upto 12 months 
* Balance held as security against performance and other guarantee 

Total 

Rs. In /akhs 
As at 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

0.17 

405.78 

405.95 

As at 

0.03 

241. 71 

241.74 

Rs. In lakhs 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

42,552.83 

666.65 

43,219.48 

43,489.88 

666.65 

44,156.53 

The deposits maintained by the company with banks comprise time deposit, which can be withdrawn by the company at any 
point without prior notice or penalty on the principal. 

*Fixed deposit held as security against performance guarantee issued by ICICI Bank Limited to PNGRB vide PBG No 
3311 OIGL0000420 for Rs 639.00 lakhs & PTC India Limited vide PBG No 0002NDDG00030624 for Rs 27 .64 lakhs. 

Note 12 - Other Current Assets 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 
Advances other than Capital advances 

Prepaid Expenses 
Prepaid Employee Benefit Exp 
Advance for Expenses 
Court Deposit 
Advance to Employees & Others 

Loans Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk /Credit impaired 
Total 

Note 13 - Assets classified as held for sale 

Particulars 

Prqject Surplus held for sale 

Liabilities associated with assets 

Rs. In /akhs 
As at 

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

72.89 89.88 
0.15 
0.10 0.87 

26.00 
38.58 

99.14 129.33 

Rs. In lakhs 
As at 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

333.27 333.27 

333.27 333.27 



Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Note 14 - Equity Share capital 
Rs. In lakhs 

Particulars As at 
March 31,2025 March 31 2024 

Authorised 
60,00,00,000 (P.Y.- 60,00,00,000) equity shares ofRs. lO each with voting rights 60,000.00 60.000.00 

Total 60,000.00 60,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 
54,87,07,264 (P.Y.-54,87.07,264) equity shares ofRs. 10 each with voting rights 54,870.73 54,870.73 

Total 54,870.73 54,870.73 

Notes: 
(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstandinf( at the bef(in11inf( and at the end of the period: 

Equity shares wit/, voti11g rights 

Year Ended March 31 , 2025 
No. of Shares 
Amount (Rs.In lakhs) 

Year Ended March 31 , 2024 
No. of Shares 
Amount (Rs.In lakhs) 

Opening 
Balance 

54,87,07,264 
54,870.73 

54,87,07,264 
54,870.73 

Fresh 
Issue 

(ii) Detail of the rif!hts, preferences and restrictions attach inf! to each class o.f shares : 

Other Changes Closing Balance 

54,87,07,264 
54,870.73 

54,87,07.264 
54,870.73 

With respect to equity shares. company has only one class of equity share. having a par value of Rs. 101-. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be 
entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution 
will be in proportion to number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

{ii!) Details of shares held by each shareholder holdinf! more than 5% shares: 

Equity shares with voting rights: 
Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd 

o/oofholding 
Oil & Natural Gas Corporation Ltd 

%ofholding 

No. of shares 
As at 31 March, As at 31 March, 

2025 2024 

27,43, 53,632 
50.000% 

27,43,53,632 
50.000% 

27,43,53,632 
50.000% 

27,43,53,632 
50.000% 

(iv) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant lo contract(s) without payment being received in cash 
for the period of 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date 

Particulars 

Equity shares with voting rights 
Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash. 

Total 

Aggregate Number of Shares 

As at 31 March, 
2025 

Nil 

As at 31 March, 
2024 

Nil 



Petronet MHB Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

(V) 
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2025 are as follows 

Shares held by promoters 

As at March 3 I, 2025 As at March 31. 2024 

Promoter name 
Oil & Natural Gas Corporation Ltd 
Hindustan Petroleum Corporation 

No. of 
No. of shares % of total shares shares 
274353632 50.000% 274353632 
274353632 50.000% 274353632 

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2024 are as follows 

Shares held by promoters 

% of total shares 
50.000% 
50.000% 

% Change during 
the year 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Promoter name 
Oil & Natural Gas Corporation Ltd 
Hindustan Petroleum Corporation 

No. of 
No. of shares % of total shares shares 
274353632 50.000% 274333672 
274353632 50.000% 274333672 

% of total shares 
49.996% 
49.996% 

% Change during 
the year 

0.00004 
0.00004 

Note: - The entire equity shares of 39,920 equity shares held by fLFS Financial Services lid has been acquired by ONGC and 
HPCL equally on 20th July 2023. 
Note 14.J - Other equity 

Particulars 

Retained earnings 

Total 

14.l.1 - Retained earnings 

Balance at beginning of the year 

Profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of defined benefit 

obligation net of income ta.x 

Payments of dividends 

Balance at the end of the year 

Note 15 - Trade payables 

P articulars 

Non-Current 
Trade payable for goods & services 

(a) Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(b) Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

Total 

Current 
Trade payable for goods & services 

(a) Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
s other than micro and small enterprises 

To 

.i· 

\~ 

Rs.111 lakhs 
As at 

March 31,2025 March 31 2024 

3,585.34 4,093.03 

3,585.34 4,093.03 

Year ended March 31, 
2025 2024 

4,093 .03 3,486.37 

8,304.49 9,625.57 

(5.43) (47.54) 

(8,806.75) (8,971 .36) 

3,585.34 4,093.03 

Rs. In lakhs 
As at 

March 31,2025 March 31 2024 

438.79 
768.67 

1,207.46 

91.72 
351.96 
443.68 



Petronet MHB Limited 
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Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31. 2025 is as follows: 

Outstanding for following periods (rom due date of payment 
Trade Payable Less than 1 

2 3 
More than 3 

Not Due 1 - 2 years - years 

MSME 
Others 
Disputed Dues-MSME 
Disputed Dues-Others 

Total 
Accrued Expenses 
Total Trade payable 

ear 
438.79 
595.77 

1,034.56 

Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is as follows: 

ears 

12.18 

12.18 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Trade Payable 

MSME 
Others 
Disputed Dues-MSME 
Disputed Dues-Others 

Total 
Accrued Expenses 
Total Trade payable 

Not Due 

Note 16 - Other Financial Liabilities 

Particulars 

Non-Current 
Deposits received from Dealers 
Retention Money for capital supplies / services 
Payables for capital supplies/services 

Total 

Current 
Deposits received from Dealers 
Retention Money for capital supplies / services 
Earnest Money Deposit 
Dues to Employees & Others 
Payables for capital supplies/services 

Total 

Note 16.1 -Lease liabilities 

Particulars 

Less than 1 
ear 

91.72 
104.11 

195.83 

I - 2 years 2 - 3 years 

26.71 

26.71 

More than 3 
ears 

11.98 

11.98 

As at 
March 31 2025 

16.18 

16.18 

4.71 
286.59 

l l.98 
4.81 

274.00 

582.09 

As at 

Rs. In lakhs 

Total 

438.79 
607.95 

1,046.74 
160.72 

1,207.46 

Rs. in lakhs 

Total 

91.72 
142.80 

234.52 
209.16 
443.68 

Rs. In lakhs 

March 31,2024 

0.66 
16.75 

640.28 

657.69 

17.08 
192.62 
27.35 
15.84 

188.83 

441.72 

.Rs. in lakhs 

March 31 2025 March 31,2024 

Non-Current 
Lease liabilities 

Total 

6.486.47 

6,486.47 

534.38 

534.38 

736.77 

736.77 

73.82 

73.82 



Petronet MHB Limited 
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Note 17 - Provisions 

Particulars 

Non-Current 
Provision for employee benefits 

Provision for compensated absences 
Provision for gratuity 

Total 

Current 
Provision for employee benefits 

Provision for compensated absences 
Provision for gratuity 
Provision for Performance Incentives 

Total 

Details of movement in provisions: 

Particulars 

Balance at April 1, 2023 
Additional provisions recognised 
Amounts used (ie incurred and charged against the provision) during the 

period 

Unused amounts reversed during the period 
Balance at March 31, 2024 

Balance at April t , 2024 
Additional provisions recognised 
Amounts used (ie incurred and charged against the provision) during the 

period 

Unused amounts reversed during the period 
Balance at March 31, 2025 

Note 18 - Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars 

Statutory dues 
Taxes payable (other than income taxes) 

Total 

Gratuity 
Provision 

146.14 
24.98 

(1.34) 

169.78 

169.78 
31.45 

(0.80) 

200.43 

As at 
March 31,2025 

276.73 
191.23 

467.96 

7.46 
9.20 

I 51.87 

168.53 

Compensated 
absences 

207.06 
74.88 

(31.07) 

250.87 

250.87 
54.55 

(21.25) 

284.17 

As at 
March 31,2025 

693.94 

693.94 

Rs. In /akhs 

March 31,2024 

243.75 
161.55 

405.30 

7.14 
8.23 

135.27 

150.64 

Rs. In lakhs 
Performance 
Incentives 

72.31 
135.27 

(72.30) 

135.28 

135.28 
143.94 

(127.34) 

151.88 

Rs. In lakJ1s 

March 31 2024 

823.26 

823.26 
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Note 19 - Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Sale of Services 
Freight Charges for Transportation of Petroleum Products 
Dispatch charges 
Other Operating Income 

Total 

Notes: 

Rs. in lakhs 
Year ended 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

16.057.24 
192.58 
35.59 

16,285.41 

14,751.78 
196.07 

7.31 

14,955.16 

i) The Freight Income is recognized based on the pipeline transportation tariff f,xed by Petroleum & Naiura/ Gas 
Regulatory Board (PNGRB) from time to ttme 

Freight income is recognized based on the pipeline tariff rate as per the PNGRB Order No. TOIPPPV2024-25/04 
dated 20.05.2024 for periodfrm11 01.04.2024 to 30.06.2024 and Order No. TOIPPPU2024-25/ J 1 dated 
18.09.2024 for the period from 01.07.2024 to 31.07.2024. 

The Freight Income/or the period/ram 01.08.2024 to 31.03.2025 is recognized based onPNGRB revised Tariff 
Order No. TO/PPPI.J2024-25115 dated 28.11.2024 with a one time increased tariff@J7% over previous tariff rate 

ii) Earning in Foreign Currency R.s Nil ( Previous Year Rs Nil) 

Note 20 - Other income 

Particulars 

Interest Income 
On Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 

Insurance Claim 
Net gain on lease modification 
Other Miscellaneous Incomes 

Total 

Interest income comprises of: 
lnterest on Tem1 Deposit 
Interest on Security Deposit 
Interest on Lease Deposit 
Interest on Vehicle Loan 

Total -Jnterest income 

Note 21 - Employee benefit expense 

Particulars 

Salaries including Bonus etc. 
Salaries including Bonus etc. for HPCL & ONGC Staff on Deputation 
Contributions to provident fund 
Gratuity 
Staff welfare expense 

Rs. In lakhs 
Year ended 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

3,944.07 3,494.10 
11 .90 3.64 

238.66 
125.15 115.11 

4,319.78 3,612.85 

3,925.98 3,485.61 
13.46 8.49 
4.28 
0.35 

3,944.07 3,494.10 

Rs. lnlakhs 
Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31 2024 

866.77 
185.91 

55.49 
23.39 
4.32 

861.40 
151.58 
54.16 

(37.75) 
3.64 

I 1,135.88 1,033.03 

.~d!lfll••~J:l<if Staff on deputation represents amounts debited by HPCL & ONGC. The above amount is reduced by 5 % of 
se towards CSR admin overhead of Rs 10.35 lakhs ( P.Y:Rs 7.46 lakhs) 
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Note 22 - Finance costs 

Particulars 

Interest on Income Tax 
Finance Charges on Lease 
Total 

Note 23 - Other expenses 

Particulars 

Power& Fuel 
Repair & Maintenance on Plant and Machinery 
Repair & Maintenance on Buildings 
Repair & Maintenance - Electricals, ROW & Others 
Operations and maintenance - Contract Manpower 
Stores & Spares Consumed 
Insurance Premium 
Painting of Station Pipings And equipment's 
Watch and Wards 
Lease Rent 
Compensation to CA(LAO) Staff 
Communication Expense 
Net Loss on disposal ofFixed Assets 
Printing & Stationery 
Professional and Consultancy Charges (Refer Note 23A below) 
Rates and Taxes 
Training, Recruitment, Seminar and Mock Drill Expenses 
Travelling and Conveyance 
Vehicle Hire Charges 
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (CSR) under section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Advertisement for Public Tender 
Other Expenses 
Total 

Note 23A - Legal and professional charges include payment to auditors 
(excluding OST) 

As auditors 
Statutory audit 
For Taxation matters 
For other services 

Total 

Note 24 - Settlement of Legal Claims 

Particulars 

Interest Paid for Settlement of Court / Arbitration Cases 
____ R-efer Note No 30 ) 

_aft'J2p 

~11.cJ\ 
11~ 

Rs. In lakhs 
Year ended 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

6.92 
754.99 
761.91 

15.27 
83.71 
98.98 

Rs. In lakhs 
Year ended 

March 31 202S March 31, 2024 

1,798.04 
139.47 

247.50 
159.76 
93.94 

120.58 
66.14 

347.73 
14.21 
2.36 

38.20 

10.24 
59.52 
28.28 
40.80 
63.59 

110.85 

220.18 

7.19 
94.20 

31662.78 

2.75 
0.70 
1.20 

4.65 

Year ended 

1,877.42 
115.77 
44.86 

168.21 
143.29 
105.46 
145.72 

0.46 
340.33 

3.76 
6.52 

32.13 
0.83 
6.04 

18,83 
27.07 
13.75 
51.62 

100.20 

156.73 

9.02 
44.78 

31412.80 

2.50 
0.75 
1.35 

4.60 

Rs. in lakhs 

March 31 2025 March 31 2024 

2,403.46 

2 403.46 
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Note 25 - Employee Bene.fits 

a. Defined Benefit Piao - Gratuity 

Gratuity is payable for 15 days salary for each completed year of service. Vesting period is 5 years and (he payment is restricted to Rs 20 
Lakhs on superannuation, resignation, termination, disablement or on death 

The following tables set out the gratuity plans ( wifunded) and the amowits recognized in the Company's financial statements as at March 
31, 2025 and March 31, 2024: 

Change in benefit obligations 
Benefit obligations at the beginning 
Service cost 
l ntereSt e,,qiense 
Curtailment gain 
Transfer of obligation 
Remeasurements - Actuarial (gains)/ losses 
Past Service cost• 
Benefits paid 

Benefit obligations at the end 

Rs. In lakhs 
Asat 

March 31 2025 March 31, 2024 

169.78 146. 15 
12. 18 I 1.02 
12.01 10.75 

7.26 63.53 
(60.33) 

(0.80) (1.34) 

200.43 169.78 

•Past Service Cost of JNR 60,33.207 is on account of Change in the benefit Ceiling limit from no limitto Rs 20 Lakhs. 

Cb a nge in p Ian assets 
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 
lnterest income 
Transfer of assets 
Remeasurements- Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income 
Contributions 
Benefits paid 

Fai.r value or plan assets at the end 

Amowll for the year ended March 3 I. 2025 and March 31, 2024 recognized in the Statemen1 of Profit and Loss under employee benefit 
expenses. 

Particulars 

Service cost 
Net interest on the defined benefit obligation 

Net gratuity cost 

Rs. lnlakhs 
Year ended 

Marc.h 31, 2025 March 31 2024 

12.18 
12.01 

24.19 

11.02 
10.75 

21.77 

Amount for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31 , 2024 recognized in Statement of other comprehensive income: 

Particulars 

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) 

Actuarial (gains) / losses 
(Gain)/loss due to change in demographic assumptions 
(Gain)/loss due to change in financial assumptions 
(Gain)/lossdue to ex-perience adjUSIJllents 

(Return) / loss on plan assets excluding amowits included in the net interest on t.he net defined 

Rs. In /akhs 
Year ended 

March31 2025 March3J,2024 

(7.96) 
0.71 

(7.26) 

(54.40) 
117.94 

63.54 

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at March 3 1, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are set out below: 

Particulars Asat 
March 31 2025 March 31. 2024 



Pelronet l\ffiB Limiled 
Noles to lhe financial s1atements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

b. l.ong-lerm employee benefits -Earned and Half Pay Leave Eocashmenl 

The following tables set out the leave plans and the amounts recognized in the Company's financial statements as at March 31, 2025 and 

March 31, 2024 : 

Change in benefit obligations 
Benefit obligations at the beginning 
Service cost 
Interest expense 
Curtailment gain 
Transfer of obligation 
Remeasurements - Actuarial (g;iins)/ losses 
Benefits paid 

Benefit obligations at the end 

Change in plan assets 
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 
Interest income 
Transfer of assets 
Remeasurement~ Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest 
Contributions 
Benefits paid 

Fair value of plan assels a t the end 

Rs. In lakhs 
Asal 

March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024 

250.89 207.06 
17.53 19.12 
17.93 14.31 

19.09 41.46 
(2 1.25) (31.06) 

284.19 250.89 

Amount for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 recognized in the Statement of Profit and Lo$ under employee benefit 

e~penses. 

Particulars 

Service cost 
Nel interest on the defined benefit obligation 
Actuarial (gains) / losses 

(Gain)/10$ due to changes in demographic assumptions 
(Gaiu)/loss due to changes in financial assumptions 
(Gain)/loss from Plan experience 

Curtailment gain 

Net leave encashment cost 

Rs.In lakhs 
Year ended 

March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024 

17.53 19.12 
17.93 1431 

0.00 0.00 
13.30 6.82 
5.80 34.64 

54.56 74.89 

The weighted-average asswnpt ions used to detemline benefit obligations as at March 31, 2025 and March 31. 2024 are set out below: 

Particulars 

Discount rate 
Salary escalation rate 

c. Defined Contribution P lans-P rovident Fund & NPS 

Asat 
Mart.It 31, 2025 March 31 2024 

6.80% 
5.00% 

7.25% 
500% 

The Company makes contribution to Provident Fund which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, 

the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised during 
year ending March JI, 2025 Rs. 55.49 lakhs (Year ended 31 March, 2024 Rs. 54. 16 lakbs) for Provident Fund contributions in the 

Statement of Profit and Lo$ under the head Employee Benefits Elqiense. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at 

rates specified in the rules of the schemes. 

The Company had introduced NPS for its employees w.e.f 01 January 2023 within the overall limit of Retirement Benefit Scheme. The 
the Company is to contribute to NPS to the extent of amount not exceeding 30% of basic pay and dearness allowance as 

/''t~•~';:&, e employer's contribution towards provident fund and gratuity. The company made contribution during the year ending 

l,;_fl'r 5, for Rs 58.25 lakhs(Yearended 31 March, 2024 Rs. 59.72 lakhs) for National Pension Scheme (NPS) 

C l Sttl\t.l., ,, 
,~\mm.-n 

B.tr.i...,'il~ 
) 

i'i>red 
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Note 26 - Financials Instruments 

F inancial instruments by category 
The carrying value and fair value of financial instrwnents by categories as of March 31, 2025 were as follows: 

Particulars 

Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note I 0) 
Bank Balances other than Cash and cash 
equivalents (Refer Note 11) 
Trade receivables (Refer Note 9) 
Other financial assets (Refer Note 5 & 5.1) 
Total 

Liabilities: 

Trade payables (Refer Note 15) 
Lease liabilities (Refer Note 16.1) 
Other financial liabilities (R.efer Note 16) 

Total 

Amortised 
cost 

405.95 

43,219.48 

3,8 12.32 
2.483.61 

49,921.36 

1,207.46 
7,020.85 

598.27 

82826.58 

Financial assets/ 
liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss 

Financial 
assets/liabilities at fair 

value through OCI 

Equity 
Designated instruments 
upon initial Mandatory designated Mandatory 
recognition upon initial 

recognition 

-

-

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2024 were as follows: 

Particulars 

Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 10) 
Bank Balances other than Cash and cash 
equivalents (Refer Note 11) 
Trade receivables (Refer Note 9) 
Other financial assets (Refer Note 5) 
Total 

Liabilities: 

Trade payables (Refer Note 15) 
Lease liabilities (Refer Note 16. 1) 
Other fin~ •. • • . (Refer Note 16) 
Total 

Amortised 
cost 

241.74 

44,156.53 

1,860.59 
2,340.16 

443.68 
8I0.59 

1 099.41 
2,353.68 

Financial assets/ 
liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss 

Financial 
assets/liabilities at fair 

value through OCI 

Equity 
Designated instruments 
upon initial Mandatory designated Mandatory 
recognition upon initial 

recognition 

-

Rs. In lakhs 

Total 
carrying 

value 

405.95 

43,219.48 

3,812.32 
2 483.61 

49,921.36 

1,207.46 
7,020.85 

598.27 
81826.58 

Total 
carrying 

value 

241.74 

44, 156.53 

1,860.59 
2 .. 340. 16 

48,599.02 

443.68 
810.59 

1,099.41 
2,353.68 

Total fair 
value 

405.95 

43,219.48 

3,812.32 
2.483.61 

49,921.36 

1,207.46 
7,020.85 

598.27 
81826.58 

Rs. In lakhs 

Total fair 
value 

241.74 

44,156.53 

1,860.59 
2,340.1 6 

48,599.02 

443.68 
810.59 

1,099.41 
2,353.68 
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Financial risk management 

Financial risk factors 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to foresee 
the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 

Market risk 

The. Company has a small amount of international exposure on account of availing services. The exchange rate between rupee and dollar has 
changed in recent years and may fluctuate in future. However, the impact of this on the Company may not be significant. 

The following table analyses foreign currency risk from financial instruments as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade payables 
Net assets / (liabilities) 

Credit risk 

As at March 31, 2025 

U.S. 
dollars 

Euro Total 

In /akhs 
As at March 31, 2024 

U.S. dollars Euro Total 

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the c.ounterparty resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure to the credit 
risk al the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to Rs.Nil and Rs. Nil as of March 31, 2025 and March 3 I, 2024, 
respectively. Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from cus10mers. On account of adoption of Ind 

AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss. 

Based 0 11 the past experience, the Company has negligible level of bad debts, as the receivables are mainly from 4 CPSE Customers with 
whom the Company has a long-term relationship. In practice, ex.pected credit losses are so immaterial that no calculations or loss reserves are 
required at all. The Company has however, provided for expected credit loss based on lifetime credit loss in respect of old doubtful/disputed 
receiv~hles. 

Liquidity risk 

The company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated fi-0111 operations. The c.ompany 
has 110 outstanding bank borrowings. The c.ompany believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. 

Accor • ~,=::!:~~.:~~ -is perceived. 
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Note 27 - Earning Per Share 

Particulars 

Basic Earnines per shore 
From continuing operations 
From discontinuing operations 

Total basic earnings per share 

Diluted Earnings per share 
From continuing operations 
From discontinuing operations 

Diluted earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share 

Year ended March Year ended March 
31, 2025 31 2024 

Rs. Per Share Rs. Per Share 

1.51 1.75 

1.51 1.75 

I.SI 1.75 

I.SJ l.75 

The eamings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows: 
Rs. In lakhs 

Particulars 

Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to owners oftbe Company 
Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon 
Profit / (loss) for the year used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 
Profit for the year on discontinued operations used in the calculation of basic 

eamine.s oer share from discontinued ooerations 

Year ended March 
31. 2025 

8,299.06 

8,299.06 

Year ended March 
3 1, 2024 

9,578.03 

9,578.03 

Profits used in the calculation of basic earnings per share from continuing operations 8,299.06 9,578.03 

Weighted average number of equity shares 54,87,07,264 54,87,07,264 

Eamings per share from continuing operations - Basic (Rs.) 1.51 1.75 

Diluted earnings per share 

The diluted earnings per share has been computed by dividing the Net profit after tax available for Equity shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares, after giving dilutive effect of the outstanding Warrants, Stock options and Convertible bonds for the respective periods, 
if any. 

Particulars 

Profit / (loss) for the year used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 
Add: Interest expense and exchange fluctuation on convertible bonds (net) -
adjusted for attributable taxes 
Profit / (loss) for the year used in the calculation of diluted eamings per share 

Profit for the year on discontinued operations used in the calculation of diluted 
eamings per share from discontinued operations 

Profits used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share from continuing 
operations 

Weighted average oumber of equity shares 

Earnings per share from contilluing operations - Diluted (Rs.) 

Ytllr ended March 
31.2025 

8,299,06 

8,299,06 

8,?99.06 

54,87,07,264 

1.51 

Rs. In lakhs 
Year ended March 

31, 2024 

9,578.03 

9,578.03 

54,87 ,07 .264 

1.75 

The Company does not have any Instruments (including contingently issuable shares) that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the 
future, hence the Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of Diluted EPS is same as that of Basic EPS. 

Nole 28 - Related party disclosures 

Nature of relationship 
Key management personnel (KMP) 

Names of the related parties 
Shrt. Anuj Kumar Jain - Chainnan 
(Appointment Effective I st June 2024) 
Shr, Pankaj Kumar -ChainnaJ1 

{resigned effective I st June 2024) 
Shri. Sudhir Kumar -Managing Director 
{Appointment Effective I st June 2024) 

Shri. Mukundan V. M. -Managing Director 
(resigned effective I st June 2024) 

Shri. Subodh Batra - Director 
Shri. M. Shyamprasad Karnath -Director 

(resigned effective 12th July 2024) 
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Ultimate Holomg Company 

Fellow Subsidiary 

Investing Party 

Transactions between related parties 

Income 

Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited 
Freight Charges 
Cost Sharing of 66KV EHT Line at Hassan 
Cost Sharing for Settlement of Legal case-Pl,L 

Man2alore Refinery & Petrochemicals Ltd 
freight Charges Received 
Dispatch Charges Received 
Rent for Lease of Pipeline Received 
Power Charges-Received 
PLC Modification and Integration Charges 

Expense 
Hindustan Petroleum Corporatiou Limited 

Land Lease Rent - Pa id 
Server Hosting Rent -Paid 
Deputation Salary & Allowances- Paid 
Training Fee Paid 
Reimbursemeut ofDraiu Repair Cost 
Lab Testing Charges Paid 

Man2alore Refmery & Petrochemicals Lid 
Power Charges Paid 
Training Fee Paid 

Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Ltd 
Deputation Salary & Allowances- Paid 

*Remuneration paid to KMP (On Deputation) 

Sudhi.r Kuamr 
MukundanVM 

Remuneration paid to KMP (others) 
Chandan Kumar Das 
Sachin Jayaswal 

Note:- All the above supply & services are including GST 

Shri. Ramesh Ramasamy - Director 
Shri C SridharGoud- Director 
{Appointment Effective I st June 2024) 
Shri Neeraj Lal-Director 
(Appointment Effective 23rd April 2024) 
Smt Pinky Rai-Director 
(Appointment Effective 12th April 2024} 
Shri B Sudharshan 
(Appointment Effective 26th July 2024} 
Shri. Chandan Kumar Das - CFO(KMP) 
Shri.Sachill Jayaswal - Company Secretary(KMP) 

Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited 

Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Limited 

Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited 
Rs. 111 /akhs 

Vear ended 
March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024 

8,193.39 

451.23 

1,493.62 
215.69 

2.36 
7.3 I 
7.03 

646.82 
3.50 

150.46 
0.17 

11.26 

403.73 
0.22 

68.75 
39.66 

35.14 
33.57 

8,714.99 
98.30 

452.56 
219_60 

2.36 
6.85 

31.33 

158.96 
3.50 

187.37 
1.23 

16.59 
6.05 

399.33 

81.57 

32.97 
31.91 

• - Remuneration to Managing Director represents amounts debited by HPCL & ONGC for its Executive on deputation to the company and 
the entitlement released by PMHBL as per HPCL & ONGC rules 

Balances outstanding at the end of the year 

Trade Re.ceh•able 

Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited 
Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Limited 

Trade Payables 
Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited 
Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited 

Othe.r FinanciJII Liabilities (Retention Money) 
• oleum Corporation Limited 

_/4,.J<"-- -o.. 

f'~*ff. 
~ ' 

\\ • 

',\r.,,.,_ 
··r-rt. 

Rs. in lakhs 

As at 

March31 2025 March3I 2024 

1,834.48 1,273.80 
277.52 95.94 

504.11 57.85 
7.60 

1.29 
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Note 29 - Leases 

The Company's Lease asse1 classes primarily consist of leases for Land and Building. The Company assesses ,\betlier a Coutr!lCI coutains a lease, at inception of a Cootracl 
A contract is or coutains , a lease if lhe conUlet conveys lhe right to control !he use of an iden1ified assets for a period of time in exchange for consideration .To assess whether 
a contract conveys Ute right to control the use of an iden1ilied asset . the Compauy assesses whether: (i)tbe contract involves the use of an identified asset , (ii) lhe Company 
bas substantially all of lhe economic benefit~ from use of tl1e asset through the period of U,e lease and (iii) the Company bas the right 10 direct the use of the asset 

At the date of commencement of the lease. Ute Company recoguizes a right-of-use asset (' 'ROU') and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in wrucb it is a 
lessee, except for leases with a tenn of twelve moulhs or less(short-term leases) and low vaJue leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the 
lease payments as an operaling expense on a straight-line basis over the tenn of the lease. 

The righl-of-use assets are initially recogniz.ed at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to lhe 
oommeucement date of the lease plus any initial direct cost less any lease incentive. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated Depreciation and impairment 

loss 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commenooment date on a straight-line basis over the lease lean of the underlying assets 

Lease liability aud ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease pa)l1llents have bee11 classified as financing cash flows, 

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for lhe year ended March 31. 2025 : 

Pa.rticulars 

Balance as at April I, 2024 

Assets Recognised on account of adoPtion of Ind AS 116 
Additions 
Decrease due to remeaswemeol of lease liabilities 
Depreciation 
Deletions 
Balance as at 11-hrch JI, 2025 

Lease Deposit 

14.04 
0 

4.30 

9.74 

Follm,ing are the changes !o the can)'ing value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31 , 2024: 

Par1iculars 

Balance as at April l, 2023 
Assets Recognised on account of adoption of Jnd AS 116 

Additions 
Decrease due to remeasurement of lease liabilities 
Depreciation 
Balaoce as at Matth 31, 2024 

Category of ROU 
Land Building 

580.93 3.95 

6,669.03 193.85 

418.30 63.25 
580.94, 

6,250.72 134.55 

Category of ROU 
Land Buildio 

664.15 51.92 

83.22 47.97 
580.93 J.95 

The aggregn1e depreciation expense oo ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of Profit and Loss. 

The following fs the break-up of current and non-current lease liability as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

Non-<:urre:nl lease liabilities 
Current lease liabilities 

The following is lhe mowment iu lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31 2024 : 

Particulars 

Balance at the bCll,innlnt 
Additions 
Deletions 
Finance cost accnted d,1ring the period 
Payment of lease liabilities 
Balance at the end 

a5 al 

March 31 2025 
6,486.47 

534.38 
7 020.85 

Vear ended 
Mardi 31 2025 

810.59 
6,862.88 
(819.60) 
754.99 

(588.01) 
7,020.85 

The table below provides details regarding contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2025 and March 31 , 2024 on an undiscounted basis: 

Particulars 

not later than one year 
later Uian Otte year and oot la1er than five years 
laier than 6ve years 

. . 
, ',~ ·iN\'!- ' i 

,:'.\:P..i::l!.!/rY~ 
·ii,,~ 

~A2d Ace?}~ 

Asal 
Mardi 31 2025 

544.39 
2,310.36 

14,207.74 

Rs. In lakhs 

Total 

584.88 

6,876.92 

485.85 
580.94 

6,395.01 

Rs. in lakhs 

Total 
716.07 

131 ,19 
584.88 

Rs. /11 Jakhs 

Man:h 31,2024 
736.77 

73.82 
810.59 

Rs. 111 /akhs 

Man:h 31,2024 
930.13 

83.71 
(203.25) 
810.59 

Rs. 111 lakhs 

l\httb 31,2024 

146.78 
633.65 
363.24 
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The table below provides details regarding Amounts recognised in profit and loss. 

Partirula.rs 

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 
Interest expense on lease liabilities 
E.~pense relating to short-tenn leases 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

485.85 
754.99 

14.21 

Rs. !11 lakhs 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

131.19 
83.71 
3.76 

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31. 2024 amount to Rs.588.01 Lakhs & Rs.203.25 Lakhs. 

Notes: 
ilj The Company /,as execltled lease agreemems with HPCL 011 /8/h A/arch 2025 for 1he leased lands si111a1ed at Ma11galore. Hassm1 mid Dew111gu111/li as per 
agreed rewsed lease rem al efjectivefrom Isl January 202-1. The ,-e,•ised ROU asse/s mid lease /10bih1ies has been ·recognised accordingly elfectil'e from I SI 

Jo1111ory 202-1 
ilj. The lease relllols m respecl of head office premises does 1101 includes Fixed mainle11011ce mid Power /Jae/mp charges for //,e purpose of poy111ei1t of lease rent as 
being 11011 lease co111po11e11/ 

Nole 30 • Contingent liabilities and c.ommitments (to the extent not provided (or) 

Contingent liabilities 

I. Claims against the company not admowledged as debt-with resped lo: • 

Particulars 

i) Petrone! MHB Limited (P.MHBL) v/s. Punj Lloyd Ltd (1'LL) - Appeal Case lying with the High Co11r1 of 
Kamataka, Bangalore against the order of City Civil Court Bangalore and interim stay has been gramed • The 
Company has deposited Rs. 1,400 lalms as courl deposit. Mis. PLL submitted an application under Vivad se Vishwas 
Scheme 11 (Contracrual disputes) ou 12th Oct 2023 for d1eir claim settlement Settled during the year refer Note No 

(i) below 

ii) Pelrooet MHB Limited (PMHBL) vis. Punj Lloyd Ltd (PLL) • (Arbilrntioo Case)- Mis. PLL fded Arbitration 
case against PMHBL in mainline pipe !;lying contract. Settled during the year refer Nole No (i) below 

iii) l27 Writ Pelitio11 cases foled by PMHBL at Hon 'ble High Court of Karuataka, Bangalore against the order of 

Hon' ble Dislrictjudge of Bangalore Rural District for compensation enhancement c-ases filed by ROU land 
owners.The Company has deposited Rs. 26.00 lakbs as court deposit.Settled during the year refer Note No (iii) below 

iv) OJ Writ Petition case filed by PMHBl at Hon'ble High Court of Kamat.-ika, Bangalore against dte ordcrof 
Hou 'ble District judge of Chickmagalur District for dmnages outside the ROU, The Company has deposited Rs. 2 I .03 

lakl1s as court deposit 

Legal/ Arbitration Cases Settled during the year 202~25 

i.) Petnmet MHB Limited Vs. Punj Lloyd Ltd Court Case and Arbitration Case: 

Rs. /11 /akhs 
\'ear roded 

March 3 I 2025 March 31 2024 

3,699.20 

2,566.22 

S-2.00 

2 1.03 21.03 

ll.03 6,338.45 

The peodh1g Court Case/ Arbitration Case with Mis. Puuj Lloyd Ltd bas been settled during lbe year undcr Vivad Se Visbwas Scheme -ll (Contrartual Dispute) 
with one time settlement of Rs 3412.75 Lakhs including interest Rs 2366.42 Lakhs disclosed as an exceptional items under Note No 24. Both Cou11 and 
Arbitration cases has been disposed off and Court has issued Order for release of court deposit of Rs 1400.00 Lakhs with interest if any in favour of the 
company. Accordingly, the Registrar, High Court ofKarnataka refunded the Cour1 deposit along with luterest. The settlement amount bas been accounted in the 
books of accounts including interest received oo cour1 deposit. As per ROU sharing agreement wid1 HPCL, a portion of HPCL share of above settled runount of 
Rs. 451.23 Lakhs collected from HPCL and accowited 

u) Arbilnltion Case with Mis. Pratham [ntegrated Engineering Solutions Private Limited 

The pending Arbitration case wilb Mis. Pratham Integrated Engineering Solutions Private Limited has been settled with one time settlemeut of Rs 94,90 Lakh.s 
including interest of Rs 37.04 Lakhs disclosed as an exceptional items under Note No 24 

iii) 127 Writ Petition Cases at Bon'ble High Cow1 of Karnalal<a. Bangalon: 

The pending 127 Writ Petition cases filed by PMHBL at Bou 'ble High Court of Karuataka, Bangalore against the order of Hon 'ble District judge of Bangalore 
Rural District for compensation eu.hancement cases foled by ROU land owners wherein, tl1e Company has deposited Rs. 26,00 lakbs as court deposit. 

Tbe High Court of Kamataka, Bangalore vide Order dated 16th December 2024 d.islllissed entire 127 writ petition cases and issued Order in favour oftbe company 
and advised to transmit the court deposit to the company 

n. Appeal aiainst O rder of i ncome Tax : 

Income Tax Case- AY 2016-17 : Appeal filed with CIT( Appeal) against Order of AO u/s. 143(3)for disallowing Depreciation on Right of Way (being amount paid to 
Forest Oeparlrneul forregularisatiou ofForest Land) of Rs. 60 Lakhs and raised demand of Rs. 30.40 Lakbs and Rs. 6.08 Lakhs being 20% of demand amount withheld 
from the refund due to Company. Fresh submission made for completion of faceless Assesseutenl bowe\'er Order from CIT (Appeal) is awaited. 

Ill. Capital Commitments: 

/~.\~ulars Year roded 
l'-:,,,,,'~===~rl.~.----------------------------------~M!.!•!!;n:b~3~1,.!,l,!!02f5L__...!Mll~rc~b!_;3~1L,,.2!!!0!!:!.24 

Rs. In lakhs 

i .i·' ~ . ., 
/ ,~·i\\1~'()1), amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital acCQunt and not provided for (Net of 

I ~ , ~ . t any) 

NJ.~ 

154.51 200.7J 

-rt:-\i fl 



Petrone! MHB Limited 
Notes to the finoncial statements for the year ended March 3 11 2015 

Note 31 -Performance bank Guarantee: 

(i) Perfonuance Bank Guarantee of Rs, 639 lal<hs bas been gjve,1 by the company in favour of Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board towards I¾ cost of the 
pipeline project as se<:urity deposit for meeting the quality of service obligations and requirement of PNGRB during operating phase. The Bank Guarantee is renewed 
from time to time and presently valid lill 5th May 2026. 

(ii) Performance Bank Guarantee of Rs. 27 .64 lakbs has been gjveo by the company in favour of Mis PTC lndia Limited towards 18 days of contracted energy bill as 
security deposit for purchase of power from ~•dian Energy Exchange on behalf of the Company valid till 5th May 2026. 

Note 31- Disclosures required for Mk ro, SmaU and Medium Enterpmes 

Particulan 

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 
(iiJ) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in tem1s of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to dte supplier beyond tl1e appointed day during 
the accounting year 

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (wbicb have been paid but 
beyond tlte appointed day during the yetlr) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

(v) Tite an1ount of interest accrued and ren1aining unpaid at the end of the OCCOU11ti11g ye;ir 

(vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succe<!diug years, until such date \\I•en the 
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductJble expenditure 
under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 

Rs. h, lokhs 
Year ended 

March 31.2025 Ma rch 31.2024 

438.79 91 ,72 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to tl1e e.'<tent such par1ies have been identified on the basis ofinfonnation avaJlable witlt tlte company 

Note 33 - Corporate Social Responsibility 

As per Section 135 of U1e Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability tltreshold, needs to speud al least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately 
precedin g three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activfties. The areas for CSR activities are promoting health care and sanitation, promoting education, 
employment enhancing vocation skills and Livelihood enhancement project, promoting Women en1powerment, promoting Environmental sustainability & conservation of 
Natural Resources and Promoting Rural Development. 

A CSR conunittee has been fom1ed by the company as per the Act. The funds were utilized through the year on tl1e activities which are specified in Schedule VU of the 
Companies Act, 2013.Greater emphasis was given during the year on Promoting Education. 

Breakup of amount spent during the year on CSR Activities as follows : 

Particulars 

1. Amount required to be spent 'by tl1e company during the year, 
2. Amount of expenditure( incurred including Carry over Currcut year Nil Previous year .Rs 22.33 Lakbs) 
3. Shortfall at the end of the year 
4.Total of previous years shortfall 
5 .Reason for shortfall 

6. Nature of CSR activities : 

Promoting Heath Care & Sanitation 
Promoting Education. Employment enhanc1ng Vocational Skills and Livelihood etthancement Projects 
Administration Exp 

Nott 34 - Operating Segments 

Year ended 
March 31.2025 

216.27 
220. 18 

NA 

85.86 
123.84 

10.48 

220.18 

The Company bas only one single reportable segment i.e. Transportation of Petroleum Products of Oil Marketing Compai1ies (OMCs' ). 

Particulars 

Revenue from External Customer~ 
Within India 
Outside India 

Nou Current Assets 
Within India 
Outside Tndin 

Year ended 
March 3112025 

16,249.82 

19,271.22 

7,315.53 
4,054.31 
3,353.81 

Rs. In lokhs 

March 31 2024 

176.87 
179.06 

NA 

92.96 
56.31 
7.46 

156.73 

Rs. l1J /akhs 

March 31,2024 

14,947.85 

I 5,000.44 

7,781.25 
3,449.07 
3,117.39 



Petrone! MHB Limited 
Notes to the fmaocial statements for the vear ended March 311 2025 

Note JS-Interim Dividend 

Cu!Tellt Year 2024-25: 

The Company bas declared and paid 1 SI lnteri.m Divider1d to Sharebo.lder during the year 2024-25 @ Rs 0. 74 per equity mare totalling Rs, 4060.43 Lakhs out of surplus 
in Profit and Loss accollllt as on 31.03.2024 and also paid 2nd lntenru Dividend to Shareholder during the year 2024-25 @Rs 0.865 per equi1y share totalling Rs. 
4746.32 Lakbs out of current year Profits . 

Previous Year 2023--24: 

The Company has declared and paid ISi Interim Dividend to Shareholder during the year 2023-24 @Rs 0.635 per equity share totalling Rs, 3484.29 Lakhsout of 
surplus in Profit and Loss account as on 31.03.2023 and also paid 2nd Interim Dividend to Shareholder during the year 2023-24@ Rs 1.00 per equity share totalling Rs. 
5487 .07 Lakbs out of currerll vear Profits . 

Companies is required to pay /distrtlmte dividend aft« deducting applicable withholding income taxes 

Note 3&-Ratios 

Ratio 

Current Ratio (in times) • 

Rerum on Equity 

Trade receivable turnover Ratio( in times) • • 

Trade Payable turnover Ratio( in t1ines) 

Net Capital turnover Ratio (in times) 

Net profit ratio in % 

Return on Capital Employed (in %) 

Note:-

Numentor Denominator 
Total ~nrrent Assets Total Current Liabilities 

Net Profit after Tax- Average Shareholder's 
Preference dividend( Equity 
if anv) 
Revenue from Average trade receivable 
operation 

Other ex-penses & Average Trade payable 
Settlement ofLeg,tl 
Claims 

Revenue from 
operation 

Average Working 
Capital( i.e. mtal current 
assets less total currer11 
liabilities) 

Net profit after Ta~ Revenue from operation 

Profit before tax and Capital employed ~ Net 
finance cost worth + lease liabilities 

t- deferred t.ax liabilities 

• Variation is due to increase i11 Cun·ent lease liabilities 
•• Variation is due to Increase i11 trade rece,1•able 

Note 37 

Curn,ot \'car Previous Year Variance 

15.73 23.96 -34.33% 

14,14% 16.41% -13.80% 

5.74 S.31 -30.87% 

7.35 7.81 -5.96% 

0.35 0.32 7.14% 

50.99% 64.36% 

17.88% 21.28% -15.97% 

Previous year's figures bave been regrouped where necessary to confonn to those of the current year's classification. 

11,e acco111pa11yi11g notes 1 ro 37 form 011 mregral pan of the ji11a11cial sratements. 

As per onr report of even date attached 
for A.R. Voswanathan & Co. 

Place : Bangalore 
Date : 19/04/2025 

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors o\ \ _ 

•-~ MHB """"' ~ 

~~ ~~, 
Ma11afi(illfi( or.:· ·ecror Direc r 
DIN: 10644 3 D :/0304153 

Chtt11Q marDas S~wal 
Chief Fi11ancial Officer Conrpa11y Secrerary 

Place : Bang,tlore 
Date : 19/04/2025 


